UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION Washington, D.C.

In the Matter of

CERTAIN ELECTRONIC EYEWEAR PRODUCTS, COMPONENTS THEREOF, AND RELATED CHARGING APPARATUSES (II)

Inv. No. 337-TA-1455

NOTICE OF INSTITUTION OF INVESTIGATION

Institution of investigation pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission

ACTION: Notice

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on June 6, 2025, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of IngenioSpec, LLC of San Jose, California. Supplements to the complaint were filed on June 17 and 23, 2025. The complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain electronic eyewear products, components thereof, and related charging apparatuses by reason of the infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 10,310,296 ("the '296 patent) and U.S. Patent No. 12,078,870 ("the '870 patent). The complaint, as supplemented, further alleges that an industry in the United States exists or is in the process of being established as required by the applicable Federal Statute.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a limited exclusion order and cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Susan Orndoff, The Office of the Secretary, Docket Services Division, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205-1802.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

AUTHORITY: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. 210.10 (2025).

SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on July 8, 2025, ORDERED THAT –

- (1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain products identified in paragraph (2) by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1-15, 17-18, 20-21, 23-25, 28-35, 37, and 40 of the '296 patent and claims 36, 43-53, 55-67, and 69-72 of the '870 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;
- (2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. 210.10(b)(1), the plain language description of the accused products or category of accused products, which defines the scope of the investigation, is "eyewear products containing electronic components in the frames and/or lenses, associated components, and related charging apparatuses";
- (3) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:
 - (a) The complainant is:

IngenioSpec, LLC 4010 Moorpark Avenue, Suite 211 San Jose, CA 95129

(b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served:

Brilliant Labs Limited 68 Circular Road, #02-01 Singapore 049422

SZ DJI Technology Co., Ltd. Lobby of T2, DJI Sky City, No. 53 Xianyuan Road, Xili Community, Xili Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China 518055

Even Realities Ltd. B201-1, Design Commune, Vanke Cloud

City, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China 518000

Even Realities GmbH Friedrichstraße 79, 10117 Berlin, Germany

Halliday Global 8 Kaki Bukit Avenue 4 Kaki Bukit, East Region Singapore 415875

Halliday Holdings Pte. Ltd. 8 Kaki Bukit Avenue 4, #08-32 Premier @ Kaki Bukit Singapore 415875

Cosonic Intelligent Technologies Co., Ltd. No. 3 Keyuan Road Songshan Lake, Dongguan City Guangdong Province, China 523808

Shenzhen Yingmu Technology Co., Ltd. D804, Building F1, TCL International E City Shuguang Community, Xili Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China 518052

Sichuan INMO Technology Co., Ltd. Room 804, Building F1, TCL Science Park, No. 1001, Zhongshanyuan Road, Shuguang Community, Xili Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China 518052

MyW Technology Co., Ltd. Yibo Building, Dianda Guyuan Industrial Park, Gongming Matian Street, Guangming District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China 518106

Shenzhen Langzhiyin Electronic Co., Ltd. Eastern Floor 6, Building D, No. 2, Xuezhujing 1st Road, Ji Hua Road, Xuexiang Bantian Longgang District, Shenzhen, China 518129

Hangzhou Guangli Technology Co., Ltd. Room 209, 2nd Floor, Building 1#, Ma Cheng Rd 36#, Xi Hu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang China 310000

Lexiang Technology Co., Ltd. A101, 456 Bibo Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, China 201204

(4) For the investigation so instituted, the Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

The Office of Unfair Import Investigations will not participate as a party in this investigation.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. 210.13. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the Commission of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Lisa R. Barton

Secretary to the Commission

Issued: July 8, 2025